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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the
charitable company for the year ended 31 August 2021. The annual rcport serves the purposes of both a (rustecs'
report, and a directors' report under company law,

The Trust operates (wo academies within the community of North Manchester: Manchester Communication
Academy (MCA) for students ages 11-16, and Manchester Coimmunication Primary Academy (MCPA) for
pupils aged 3-11. The Trust also operates Teach North Manchester, which is thc North Manchester Initial
Teacher Training (NMITT) centre.,

‘The Trust had a combined student roll of 1,607 as at the school census date of 7 October 2021.

Structure, governance and management

Constitution

The Trust is exempt charity and is constituted as a charitable company limited by guarantee (number:
06754335), governed by its Memorandum and Articles of Association. Therc were no significant amendments
to these governing documents during the year,

The Trustees of Greater Manchester Academies Trust (GMAT) are also the directors of the charitable company
for the purpose of company law. The charitable company was previously known as Manchestcr Communication
Academy, with the change in name being resolved in 2016.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year are included in the Reference and Administrative Details
scction on Page 1. Local governing bodies for MCA and MCPA werc in place during 2020-21 and a NMITT
Strategic Management Committee was also in place throughout the year.

Members' liability

Each mcmber of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while they are a meinber, oi within one year after they ceases to be a member, such amount as
may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before they cease to be a member,

Trustees' indemnities

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, every trustee or other officer or auditor of the Tiust shall
be indemnified out of the assets of the Trust against any liability incurred by them in that capacity in defending
the proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgement is given in favour or in which they are acquitted
or in connection with any application in which relief is granted to them by the court from liability for
negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the affairs of the Trust.
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The articles of association require the appointment of at least three trustees (there is no maximum number) to be
responsible for the statutory and constitutional affairs of the charitable company and the management of the
Trust. They arc appointed as follows:

« Up to four by British Telecom (currently: H Slinger; S Walker; H Ngawoofah and D Barrow)
* Up to two staff trustees (currently: none)

« The Exectitive Principal / Accounting Officer, if appointed by resolution of the trustees (currently; J
Rowlands)

* Up to four co-opted trustees (currently: H Vaughan, C Brett and T Said). (V Rosin, J Putt and R Lawler were
all co-opted trustees who resigned on 31 August 2021. C Brett and T Said were appointed on | September
2021).

The trustees are directors of the charitable company for the puiposes of the Companics Act 2006 and trustees for
the purposes of charity legislation.

The term of office for any trustee is four yeal's, save that:

(i) this time limit shall not apply to the Exccutive Principal / Accounting Officer
(ii) a staff trustee shall cease to hold office if they cease to be cmployed at the Trust.

Any trustee may be re-appointed or re-elected.

The trustees who are currently in office and served throughout the year are listed on page 1. During the period
under review the trustees held six meetings of the full Trust Board.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The training and induction provided for new trustces depends on théir existing experience. New trustees
undergo training on the legal obligations under company law, the content of the Memorandum and Articles of
Association, the governance -and decision making process of the Trust, the strategy, the financial position of the
Trust and recent financial performance of the Trust.

Where necessary induction provides training on charity matters and on educational, legal and financial matters,

All new trustees are given a tour of tlie academics within the Trust and the chance to meet with staff and
students. All trustees arc provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and
other documents that they need to undcrtake their role as trustees. Inductions are lailored specifically to the
individual.

The Trust employs a Governance and Compliance Professional who provides guidance to the trustees on

compliance with appropriate legal, regulatory, statutory and other framcworks. Thc Governance and
Compliance Professional maintains training records and skills inventories for the board of trustecs.
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Organisational structure

A unified management structure opcrates at the Trust. The management structure consists of four levels:
1) the members

2) the trustees

3) the local governing bodies

4) the senior leadership team

The aim of the management structure is to devolve responsibility and encourage involvement in Trust decision
making,.

The trustces arc responsible for setting general policy, adopting an annual and three-ycar plan ard budget,
monitoring the Trust by the use of budgets and making major decisions about the direction of the Trust, capital
expenditure and senior staff appointments.

Local Goveining Bodies (LGBs) arc in place at MCA and MCPA. LGBs oversee the operation of cach
academy, as per the Trust’s Scheme of Delegation and the Chair of each LGB sits on the Trust Board. The
LGBs have their own terms of reference.

The senior leaders during the year of account were the Executive Principal who acted as Accouiting Officer,
supported by the academy Headteachers, an Associate Vice Principal, the Director of Families and Communities
and the Chief Financial Officer.

In addition, a designated Senior Safeguarding Lead and other Shared Services Leads formed part of a wider
Trust leadership group, whose teams provide services to all GMAT academies and institutions.

The senior lcaders direct the Trust at an executive level, implementing the policies laid down by the trustees and
reporting back to them. As a group the senior leadérs are responsible for the authorisation of sperding within
agreed budgets and the appointment of staff, though appointiment Loards for staff in the management team
always contain a trustee. Soine spending control is devolved to members of the wider management team, with
limits above which a senior manager must countersign. Thesc arc fully caplured and delailed in the Trust’s
Financial Control Policy.

The management teams at academy level, which includes the senior management, Vice Principals and Assistant
Principals, are responsiblé¢ for the day-to-day operation of the Trust, in particular organising the teaching staff,
facilities & students.

As sponsor, BT shares expertise, skills and good practices by way of providing some members, trustees,
governors and committee members. BT does not take a direct role in managing the organisation.
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Trustces' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Trust has a pay scale, agreed by the Trustees, which covers all senior managers (grades arc broadly
comparable to thosc found at maintained schools in Manchester). The Executive Principal's pay is reviewed
annually by the Chair in liaison with an independent, impartial consultant, The Chair must approve any changes
to remuneration.

During the period of account, the Executive Principal was responsible for the performance management of
Academy Headteachers and other senior leaders. The Executive Principal met with each staff member in this
group to review their progress against agreed targets, and decisions regarding pay progression followed on from
this.

Trustees are not paid for their services as board members; however, Trustees may be reimbursed for any
appropriate business expenses. During the reporting period, these were nil.

Connected organisations, including related party velationships

The Trust works closely with its sponsor - British Telecom (BT). BT supports the Trust by shaiing expettise,
skills and good practices by way of providing some members, trustees, governors and committee to support the
governance of the organisation.

During the year, the Trust ceased the remaining procurement of telephony and internct services to satisfy the 'at
cost' requirements of (he Academy Trust Handbook. The tcrmination took effect in November 2020.
Expenditure with BT was £3,438.23 during 2020-21. and this represénts the final transactions with the Trust's

sponsor.,

One of the Trust’s Members, Mr J Falder, is the managing director of HMG Paints Limited from whom the
Trust procurcd some cleaning consumables during the coronavirus pandemic. The expenditure in this regard was
£2,152.50.

The Exccutive Principal, Mr J Rowlands was appointed a Trustee of Right To Succeed in July 2020. GMAT
received grants from Right To Succeed of £28,147.50 during the ycar. The Right to Succeed Project is a
collaboration between Right to Succeed, Manchester City Council and nine Manchester secondary schools
which explores ways of reducing pupil exclusions across the city through developing opportunities for young
people and delivering positive educational changes.

Another of the Trustecs, Mr H Ngawoofah is an cmployee of Young Manchester. The Trust received a grant
from Young Manchester during the year of £12,500. The grant from Young Manchester helped our Families and
Communities team facilitate some of their family partnerships and support work throughout our community.

Finally, another of our Trustees, Mrs D Barrow is an employec of the local authority, Manchester City Council.
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Greater Manchester Academics Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Section 172 Statement

Under Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006, the Trustees of GMAT must act faithfully in the way they
consider, would most likely to promote the success of the Trust for the benefit of all of its stakcholders as a
whole.

In doing so each trustee must have regard (amongst other matters) to: -

(i) the likely consequences of any decision in the long term;

(ii) the interest of the Trust’s emplayees;

(iii) the need to foster the Trust’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and other stakeholders;
(iv) the impact of the Trust’s operations on the lacal and wider community and on the environment;

(v) the desirability of the Trust maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and

(vi) the need to act fairly as between members of the Trust.

(i) The likely consequences of any decision in the long term

The Trust primarily engages its key decision making in alignment to its Stralegic Business Plan, and in
particular the Key Priorities. The Key Priorities link back to the Trust’s vision which is ‘to provide high quality
teaching & learning through a supportive framework for academic success which engages local communilies,
mitigales the cffects of disadvantage and positively impacts social mobility’.

The Key Priorities in the 2019-22 Strategic Business Plan aré:
(a) Ensuring Educational Excellence

(b) Networking for Success

(c) Building Trust and Capacity

(d) Transforming Lives and Futures

All Trust decisions are made with the intention of directly or indirectly improving educational outcomes for our
students; however, each individual decision considers the impact on all stakeholders and considers the need for
any changes to, or refinements of decisions previously taken.

The principal decision taken during 2020-2lwas to bring the catering functions for both MCA and MCPA
in-house. The transfer of catering away from the local authority into the Trust’s full control took effect from
April 2021,

The Trust now receives better value for money in relation to food, consumables and catering compliance costs;
has better control over the menus in the academics; and can better synergise the catering teams with teaching
departments as a way of promoting healthy eating, better nutrition and using food as a catalyst for positive
change.
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Greater Maunchester Academies Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

(ii) The interest of the Trust’s employees

The Trust recognises the importance of its employees and it values the contributions made by all staff to
providing the best possible ¢ducation for our young people; to supporting the ambitions of our young people and
their families; to delivering transformational, positive social impact in our communities; and to improving the
life chances of our young people.

During the yecar, the Trust made positive changes to its Family Policy by way of favourable changes to
occupational paternity, matemity, adoption and shared parental pay.

The Trust has engaged with its employees through staff surveys, and through promotion of honest, open,
respectful and regular communication within and across teams throughout the Trust. Any issucs raised are
addressed as soon as is practically possible which steps taken to address communicated back to staff.

Staff are offered access to a wide range of wellbeing and other support initiatives. As we emerge from the
coronavirus pandemic, we will rc-introduce staff sports sessions, mentoring sessions and other face-to-face
engagement.and enhanced pastoral support.

(iii) The nced to foster the Trust’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and other stakeholders

The Trust recognises the importance of building a good working relationship with all of its suppliers, especially
thosc from within the locality. The Trust’s Financial Control Policy has a comprehensive section on
procurement, payments and expenditure, in which it details how it is desired that preferred suppliers who can
clearly demonstrate valuc for money are those based within the local community or thosc having an affinity with
what we are striving to achieve in the local community.

The Trust has a lettings portfolio, which comprises of a hybrid of community and commercial bookings for a
wide range of spoits, activities, meetings and sessions. The Trust’s Lettings Policy articulates how the two-way
engagement between hirers and the Trust has a positive impact on the communities we serve,

The solid working relationships the Trust has with partners, suppliers, customers and other stakeholders are

continually evolving and improving, and the Trust acknowledges that thesc working relationships are ¢ardinal to
our effectiveness and delivery of services. ‘

Page 8




Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

iv) The impact of the Trust’s operations on the local community and on the environment
p ) Y

The Trust has a positive impact on the local community of North Manchester by way of delivering deep social
impact through cextensive communily and stakeholder insight. Fundamental to the mitigation of the cffects of
disadvantage and to thc positive impacts on social mobility, is the provision of an excellcnt education to our
students; however, further to this is the facilitation of a number of programmes and initiatives within our

community.

The Trust is also kcen to further improve its impact on the environment, During the year and during previous
years, the Trust has taken the following steps to drive developments in energy efficiency and in elimination of
waste: installation of a full suite of LED lighting throughout both academies; installation and maintenance of
efficient boiler systems; working with energy brokers to help us execute cultural awareness across the Trust,
utilising their best practices; introdiction of a hybrid of face-to-face and video conference meetings, as the Trust
cmerges from the coronavirus pandemic.

The Trust is developing an Environmental Strategy which will articulate how we will aim to reduce our carbon
footprint and how we will make more efficient use of our resources with regards to our environmental impact.
The Trust recognises its responsibility to carc for the environment.

(v) The desirability of the Trust maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct

The reputation of the Trust and of its academies is a fundamental part of ils current and future successes. The
values, vision and strategy of the Trust are an integral part of recruitment, sclection, training and continuous
professional development of our staff, and thesc have a consequential positive impact on dealings with all
internal and external stakeholders.

(vi) The nced to act fairly as between members of the Trust

The Trust has a clear, well-communicated vision and strategy which underpins our desire to provide high quality
teaching & learning through a supportive framework for academic success which engages local communities,
mitigates the effects of disadvantage and positively impacts social mobility.

The Trust produces transparent comprehensive financial and management reporting which is appropriately
reviewed and scrutinised, before being used to substantiate business decisions, ultimately impacting our pupils
and students.

The Trust strives to continue to be a fully inclusive organisation and does not unfairly discriminate against our
students, staff or any other member of our community and stakeholders.

Objectives and activitics

Our Core Values

The Trust has five core values which underpin cverything wé do: frustworthy; helpful; inspiring;
straightforward and heart.

Thesc values are the foundations upon which every aspect of our work and success are built,

Objects and aims

The Trust’s vision is to provide high quality tcaching & learning through a supportive framework for academic
success which engages local communities, mitigates the effects of disadvantage and positively impacts social
mobility.
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

GMAT aims (o deliver excellent provision for students, familics and the community and staff and aims to bring
equality of educational expcricnce to every student in order to maximise outcomes for all.

Students will:

* be physically, socially, cmationally safe and healthy

» be asset rich and resilicnt to the effecls of the area and of personal disadvantage
« make good or better academic progress at cach stage of their education

* be able to securc the employment opportunities of their choice

* be able to contribute to the community

It is the aim of GMAT that staff will achicve the highest professional standards, continuously developing their
skills and experience through high quality research, training and innovation. In addition to this, the Trust
supports Teacher Training through the North Manchester Initial Teacher Training Partnership.

Public benefit

The primary purposc of Greater Manchéster Academies Trust is the advancement of education in the Greater
Manchester arca. Inextricably linked with this purpose is the aim of contributing to the public good. Through the
provision of educational and other activities, the Trust aims to contribute considerable benefit to the local
community, Families and the wider community make an important contribution throughout GMAT. They access
outstanding facilities and the diverse programme of social and learning opportunities. Their involvement

underpins a far reaching community strategy.

The Trustees have complied with the duty in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2011 to have due regard to the public
benefit guidance provided by the Charity Commission.
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Strategic Report

Achievements and performance

In response to the coronavirus pandemic, the Trust has provided an effective and continuously improving hybrid
package of remote learning and face-to-face learning on site, acrass all phases of the Trust’s educational scope.
During periods of coronavirus national lockdown, the facc-to-face learning was delivered to vulnerable and key
worker pupils and students. The Familics and Communitics tcams fulfilled a wealth of pastoral, counselling,
emotional and other support to our students and their families, particularly those within our local community
who needed it most during these unprecedented times.

The Trust continued to thrive over the period of account. The NMITT delivercd a further cohort of ncwly
qualified teachers, MCPA hosted pupils in all year groups from Nursery through to Year 6, and MCA is at
capacity, delivering strong examination results.

CA

Once again, (here were no formal Key Stage 4 GCSE examinations due to the disruption of the coronavirus
pandemic. Unlike 2019-20, when Centre Assessed Grades (CAG) werc used to determine GCSE results,
Teacher Assessed Grades (TAG) were used in 2020-21, With TAG, more evidencc is required to substantialc
the grades ultimately awarded to students, and MCA staff went through the rigorous TAG processes and
procedures. Grade appeals were kept to an absolute minimum,.

The examination results achicved by the students were very pleasing and were comparable with previous ycars,
The academy is pleased with the examination results and is cxtremely proud of the achicvements of our
students. It is hoped that the examination series for 2021-22 will revert back to how it was pre-pandemnic. )

During periods of coronavirus national lockdown and during periods where students were isolating, an effective
package of remote learning and face-to-face learning was delivered, and the academy is proud of being able to
achieve this in unprecedented times of adversity.

Therc were a number of enhancements to the academy learning areas during the year. The principal addition
was the creation of a new library and learning resource centre (*The Beehive'). The Bechive furnishes a
wonderful cnvironment- for leaming and delivers a provision of a diverse range of rcading materials and
educational resources. It will be a long term focus of the teaching and learning strategy for the academy.

Other capital envichments within MCA during 2020-21 were implementation of a new catering till system,
procurement of 3D printers for the Design and Technology Department, and improvements to some of the other

teaching zones.

Student numbers have increased again, with the academy being close to its Pupil Admissions Number (PAN),
which is the number of pupils in each year group that the local authority, as admissions authority, has agreed
will be admitted without causing problems for the school.
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Greater Man.chester Academies Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

MCPA

The MCPA community pulled together in response to the coronavirus pandemic and worked hard to make the
periods of coronavirus national lockdowns, particularly with regards to the pupils® learning, as successful as
possible. As a result, relationships between pupils' families and the academy are the strongest they have ever
been. The academy continues to develop its family offer, now hosting a baby group and toddler forest school
cach week alongside parent breakfasts and weekly coffec mornings.

The academy’s curriculum is strong, and well sequenced, with appropriate adaptations to make up for ‘lost
learning’ from coronavirus national lockdowns.

The academy is in the process of securing both the National Nurturing School Award and the Nature Friendly
Schools Award. These awards will support our development of nurturing provision and outdoor learning.

The academy building has also been further developed during the year to support the cducational outcomes of
children. These enhancements have included pravision of an outdaor play area and assault course.

Teach North Manchester
Noith Manchestei [nitial Teacher Training Programme aims to:

1. Deliver high quality Initial Teacher Training.

2. Ensure that trainees become highly effective teachers.

3. Provide high quality teachers for the children and young people of North Manchester and Greater
Manchester.

4. Provide opportunity for the collaborative improvement of learning and teaching across the partnership
scltings.

In 2020-21, 20 trainees gained Qualified Teacher Statis (QTS) across all key stages. As. at September 2021, 17
of the alumni, had commenced permanent employment within 2 school, and a further 2 were working as supply
teachers. 17 of the alumni had secured their employment within Greater Manchester.

Social Investment and Standing in our Local Community

Our ambition is to provide the highest quality cducation for children and young people in thc communities
whom we serve, We believe passionately in the power of an excellent education to transform lives and futures
and feel that we can build on our social investment activities, local knowledge, community relationships. and
strong partnerships to make this happen.

The Tiust has a Families and Communities Department which co-ordinates and undertakes the wide range of
support, provision and social investment to our students and families. These investment activities and elements
of support, in addition to the provision of an excellent ¢ducation, enhance and strengthen the Trust’s standing in
the local community of North Manchester.

Some of the aétivitics based provision and someé of the face lo face interaction was paused due to the

coronavirus pandemic, These activities have been gradually reintroduced throughout the Summer Term 2020-21
and into the 2021-22 Autumn Term, as national coronavirus restrictions weie reduced.

The Families and Community Department run a number of programmes and initiatives within our academics
and throughout our community as follows:
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Family Zoune - Working with parents to ensure that their children are happy, safe and successful in school but
also that they experience far reaching opportunities that inspire them to make a vital contribution in the future to
our community and to wider society. We remove barriers to realisc opportunitics for our children growing up in
the Family Zone. During the coronavirus pandemic, the engagement with students, parents and wider family
members became increasingly more salient.

Community Learning - The Trust provides a range of accredited and non-accredited courses available to the
community, including first aid training, English as an additional language lessons, sign language and Maths
lessons. There are: further enrichment activities available such as art classes, participation in board games and
armchair yoga.

Once Upon a Time - A group, primarily for over-50s where péople are invited to drop-in sessions to make
friends, enjoy companionship, reminisce and consider printed and other group archive material. The group
produces a magazine three times a year, which features materials from the archives.

Community Lettings - The Trust is home to around 40 community groups, grassroots clubs and supplementary
schools who provide a serics of programumes to their participants and community members.

The Trust has introduced and established a Familics and Communities Sub-Committce with the first meeting
held in November 2021. The role of this Sub-Committee is to further strengthen the review of thc work
delivered by the Families and Communitics Department, to advance the devcloping of links with other
couununity organisations and to strategise the further championing of our standing in the local community.

Manchester Comminication Research School

Manchester Communication Research School was designated by the Education Endowment Foundation in June
2019 and is onc of 32 schools nationally. The Research School Network is primarily focused on mobilising
evidence and supporting engagement with cvidence and evidence informed practice across the teaching
profession. The Network are working to develop a regional strategy where Research Schools work with local
partnerships, supporting a collaborative and sustained approach to school improvement.

The Research School now leads on a number of partnerships across the North West region. These include;
Lancashire, Bury and Manchester. We are also in the early stages of discussions with Salford and Trafford. This
year, there has also been a significant development in the Staff Development landscape nationally, with the
designation of Teaching School Hubs. As part of these developments, we are partnered with Bright Futures
Teaching School Hub across Manchester and Stockpoit and STAR Teaching School Hub covering Bury, Bolton

and Rochdale.

Our work with the Hubs will include offering high quality Continuous Professional Development to partner
schools and training their facilitators in the use of evidence for the delivery of the Early Career Framework and
National Professional Qualifications.
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Display of resilience during the coronavirus pandemic

The Coronavirus pandemic has presented significant challenges across the Trust,

Throughout this period the commitment has been to:

+ Redcsign and resourcc support to cffectively meet the changing needs of children, familics and community
both within learning and beyond

« Ensure equally effective lcarning opportunities immespective of whether this takes place in school or at home,
ensuring technology is in place and used effectively

« Continue to listen to families and staff to support them beyond routine school issues

+ Keep in touch through regular phone calls, letiers, text, social media and the websites to ensure communication
is clear irrespective of whether children are in attendance or supported at home

* To ensure at lcast basic needs are met for all families

Going Concern

The Trust has continued to make good progress in turning round its financial position. The deficit incurred in
2018-19 would not have been sustainable and the trustees are pleased with the progress made since then, in
turning a concerning financial situation around.

The turnaround in financial position to date can be atiributed to a longer term realisation of the 2019-20 staffing
restructurc; a focus on management of cash; an improved culture of financial awarencss; augmented financial
control, and a strengthening of financial reporting.

A sustainable three-year financial plan for the period 2021 to 2024 has been prepared, reviewed, scrutinised and
approved. The plan is a meticulous balance of positivity and prudence and demonstrates that the Trust is a going
concern. The plan evaluates both giving the very best for our students and further stabilising the financial
position. It can be summariséd in the following tablc which excludes depreciation charges and notional
movements in the (LGPS) pension reserve:

2021-22 (Year 1) 2021-22 (Year 2) 2022-23 (Year 3)
Income £12.580m , £13.042m £13.396m
Staffing costs _ £9.702m £9.993m £10.380m
Non-staffing costs £2.499m £2.617m £2.694m
Capital Expenditure £0.271m £0.321m £0.237Tm
‘Working’ Surplus £0.108m £0.111m £0.085m
31 Aug 2022 31 Aug 2023 31 Aug 2024

Projected cash held

as at balance sheet £2.008m £2.113m £2,195m
date
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 ‘Aug_ust 2021 (continued)

As such, at the time of approving the annual report and financial statements, the trustees have a firni expectation
that the charitable company has adequate resources to continuc in operational existence for the foresccable

future.

During the year, in rclation to the principal grant (ESFA Geneial Annual Grant), MCA was funded for 1,172
students and MCPA was funded for 385 students.

In 2021-22, MCA is being funded for 1,189 students and: MCPA is béing funded for 386 students.

Further progress has been made during the year in being as close to ‘PAN’ as is possible, particularly within
MCPA. 2021-22 is the first academic year in which MCPA will contain two forms within each year gioup, and
as such the numbers driving the 2022-23 Gencral Annual Grant for MCPA will be higher.,

The Trust has made fiirther progress in reducing its staffing ratio during the academic year; however, due to the
increased funding available during the year as a result of the coronavirus pandemic, the staffing ratio (staffing
costs as -a proportion of total income) has been (favourably) distorted to a degree. The staffing ratio as at 31
August 2021 was 67.8%

The Trust also reviewed non-staffing budgets and other overheads, identifying arcas where savings could be
made, where procurement could be more efficicnt and effective, and where recent arcas of high expenditurc
could be targeted and addressed.

A comprehensive Trust-wide asset management plan has been produced during the year, which contains all
capital and revenue possessions (not consumables) tagged in a database, which is fully costed, which is fully
funded and which has anticipated replacement dates for all assets contained within the plan. The comprehensive
asset management plan is intrinsically linked to the Trust’s Reserves Policy, by way of allocating an appropriate
level of funds each year in ordér to finance the replacement or refurbishment of assets when they likely fall dué.

During 2021-22 the Trust’s Finance Team will continue to further a good culture of finance and cash awareness,
of sensible procurement and of wider best consideration of public funds,

Financial review
The significant majority of the Trust’s income (95.8%) is rcccived from central government and local
government revenue grants, which include the main ESFA General Annual Grant allocations, Pupil Premium

funding and local authority funding.

The remaining income was generated through the Manchester Communication Research School, through other
grants and through the Trust’s lettings portfolio (dance studio, football pitches and sports hall), although the
availability of thesc lettings for hire was once again curtailed in 2020-21 due to the coronavirus pandemic. The
unavailability of the lcttings portfolio for hire diring the yecar has not had a material impact on Trust income
levels. .

The Trust maintained its standing in the local comnunity during the coronavirus pandemic, and its Families and
Communities Depaitment led on offering primarily pastoral and solicitous support, but also some financial
support, where necessary, to those members of our community most in- need.

Cash in the bank as at 31 August 2021 was £1.978m, up from £0.773m twelve months earlier.

A summary of the financial performance for the year ended 31 August 2021 can be found in the Statcment Of
Financial Activities (on Page 38) and in the Balance Sheet (on Page 39).

Page 15




Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Capital Expenditure

The Trust has incwired capital expenditure of £239k in 2020-21. The principal capital additions applied during
the year werc £44.3k on a suitc of CCTV cameras across both academies; £36.7k on a new MCA Learning
Resource Centre (‘The Becehive’); and £27.7k on the new MCPA outdoor play area and assault course.

Of the £239k capital additions, £58.5k was funded by Manchester City Council, £32.5k was funded by the
ESFA Devolved Formula Capital Grant and £2.7k by the Football Foundation. The remaining £149.3k was
funded by way of a Révenue Contribution to Capital Outlay.

The levels of capital expenditure will continue to be carefully moritored by the Trust moving forward, and the
refined comprehensive asset management plan will help effectively monitor capital expenditure over the short,
medium and longer terms.

Other significant movements in the Statement Of Financial Activities are £857k of depreciation costs and a
further increase in pension liabililies of £1,991k. Although thesc movements are not ‘cash’ transactions, the
trustees consider and understand the potential longer term implications of these on the financial viabilily of the
Trust,

Depreciation

The Trust’s total depreciation charge for the year is £857k (down from £913k in 2019-20). Of this total
depreciation charge, £719k is in respect of land and buildings, £77k in respect of furniture, fixtures and fittings,
and zero in respect of owned vehicles. These asscts are maintained, as far as is possible, in an ‘as new’
¢ondition, with an annual programme of planned & preventative maintenance (PPM) for both academies, and
reactive maintenance budgets for ensuring the upkeep of the built fabric of each site,

ICT depreciation for the year is £61k (down from £132k in 2019-20) and this reflects the effects of both the
in-year additions, and reduction in value of the Trust’s existing ICT hardware & infrastructure. The Trust did
enter into an operating lease for its Audio Visual equipment and for its laptop and desktop computers in 2019.
These items do not show on the Trust’s balance sheet as fixed assets and the lease payments have been realised
as items of expenditiire in the Statemicnt of Financial Activities.
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Greater Manchester Academics Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Pension Liabilities

Trust staff are placed in one of two pension schemes: teaching staff are in the Teachers® Pension Scheme (TPS),
and nori-teaching staff are in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The TPS is ‘unfunded’, and so no
liability as such is réflected in Trust Accounts. The actual rate for TPS cmployer contributions is currently

23.68%

The LGPS is ‘funded’ - so each year, the value of the fund and the liabilities to be met from it are assessed, and
the change in these factors is reflected in the accounts of bodies who have staff in the fund. The increase in this
liability is due to a wide range of imacro-level external factors, affecting the financial environment &
assumptions about future performance. Managing the Pension Fund so that assets and liabilities match up in the
longer term is a role undertaken by fund managers; periodically, contribution ratcs are amended to ensure the
fund continues to be viable.

The LGPS liability is considered in the overall reserves of the Trust:
Restricted and Unrestricted General Fund: £1.759m

Restricted Capital Fund: £29.370m

Restricted Pension Fund: (£5.534m)

The LGPS in which GMAT’s non-teaching staff are placed is the Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF).

The current actual rate for GMPF employer contributions is 18.5% for GMAT and this rate is in place until
March 2023 after which the next tricnnial period commences. Whilst MCA and MCPA receive individual
actuarial reports cach year, the numbers shown in these are notional and do not necessarily drive the actual cash
contributions required from the Trust in respect of GMPF employer contributions.

GMAT is placed in a pool of employers known as the ‘Manchester City Council Pool’. There are over 100
employers in this pool, and the GMPF employer contribution rate is 18.5% for all in this pool for the period
April 2020 to March 2023.
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (¢ontinued)

Financial and risk management objectives and policies

Risk Management

The trustees are aware of their responsibilities to identify, assess and manage the major risks to which the Trust
is exposed.

During the yéar, the Trust has develaped its work on risk management by further enhancing its risk management
policy and risk strategy. All staff and governors continuc to have a gaod understanding of their day to day
respoisibiliti€s in managing risk.

The Trust has implemented a ‘three lines of defence’ model to help with the management of risk. The ‘thrce
lings of defence’ are three sets of peaple who collaborate to manage visk. A person may belong to miore than one
sct; however, each sct as a whole maintains a degree of indcpendence from the preceding sct, and each set is
proactive and does wait for the preceding sct to “fail’:

1) The first ‘linc of defence’ consists of all staff, goverors and trustees.

2) The ‘second line of defence’ consists of all Senior Leadership Team, Finance and Audit Camimittee
colleagues, Executive Principal and the Trust Board.

Managers should not only ensure that their staff are aware of their operational risks and that their staff perform
the controls expected of them in their day to day activities, but should also apply cross-department challenge in
terms of risk and control.

The Executive Principal, Trust Board and its sub-committees shall apply rigorously challenge and independent
quality assurance regarding risk management. They shall cnsure that staff are performing the controls expected
of them, that managers are ensuring their staff are risk aware, and that managers are applying appropriate
challenge. '

3) The ‘third line of defence’ consists of auditors (internal and external), regulators (stich as ESFA and Ofsted)
and other relevant third party assuranccs.

Whilst the Trust does not control the scope and remit of auditors and regulators, it is accepted that these-bodies
provide definitive, uscful and comprehensive assurance which is substantial enough to be classified as a line of

defence for the Trust with iegards to risk managément,

The extensive degree of independence provided by these bodies, is not available in the second line of defence,
s0 it is justifiable for them to be included in the Trust’s third line of defence,
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Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Whilst in the ‘second line of defence’ in terms of assurance, the Trust Board is accountable for thc management
of risk throughout the Trust.

The Trust has identificd the following risk typcs - thematic categories into which our risks are classified.

* People Risk - does the Trust appropriatc develop and look after its staff and does the staff appropriate plan for
succession within leadership, teaching and non-teaching positions?

« Finance Risk - is the Trust is a good financial position with a suitable level of cash reserves and is the Trust
able to substantiate its decision making with complete, accuiate and timely management reporting?

« Governance Risk - is the governance structure of the Trust fit for purpose?

+ Operational Risk - are our students given everything they need within the acadcmies to be able to achieve the
best standards they possibly can?

« ICT Risk - does the Trust have an ICT and telephony network that is fit for purpose and which can withstand

stresses?
+ Compliance Risl - does the Trust have an ICT and telephony network that is fit for purpose and which can

withstand stresses? :
+ Environmental & External Factors Risk - does thic Trust properly inspire and deliver positive changes for all

w'ithin the community it serves?
+ Facilities Risk - docs the Trust properly protect, sccure and maintain its land, buildings and wider assct base?

These classifications arc present on the Trust’s Risk Register, which holds all identified risks. Each risk is given
a severity rating and a likelihood rating and is imapped to a series of controls, in place to mitigate said risks.

Each risk type has an ‘owner® who is a senior Trust leader. Policies and procedures have been developed against
each to manage risk, and the risk register is reviewed periodically by the Board to identify areas where further
measures may be nceded.

The processes in place to identify, log, classify and manage risk are reviewed annually or where there have been
material changes to the relevant courses of business. The Trust’s Risk Register is also reviewed and approved
cither annually, or where there have been material changes to the relevant courses of business.
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Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Reserves policy

The Trust’s Reserves Policy has been scrutinised by the Finance and Audit Committee and has been approved
by the Trustees. The principal objective of the Policy is to protect our learners, our staff, trustces and governors,
and our assets.

The Policy has other objectives as follows:

1) to develop sufficient capital and revenue reserves to fund future projects.

2) to have a prudent level of resources available to meet unforeseen contingencies. Very often, the effects of an
unplanned event can be managed in the long-term, but the Trust needs reserves in the meantime.

3) to further stabilise the Trust’s finances and continue the improvement of the Trust’s rescrves levels.

4) to maintain a focus on pure cash reserves

5) to be ulilised alongside the Trust’s Banking and Investments Policy

6) to be utilised alongside the Trust’s long-term assel management plan.

7) to contribute to the culture of good financial control, cash management and value for money, which are

communicatcd and embedded across the Trust and its academies.
8) To ensure that the Trust is compliant with the requircments of the Academy Trust Financial Handbook.

The maintenance and improvement of the Trust’s reserves is focused primarily on cash in the bank, but also on
accounting reserves balances. The Trustees have short term and longer term plans for the maintenance and
improvement of these reserves.

For the acadeimic year 2021-22:

+ the Trust must hold at-least £1,250,000 across all of its bank accounts at any given point in time.

« at each month end date, the Trust must hold the equivalent of at least one and a half month’s payroll costs.

» the Trust will allocate a further £250,000 per ycar towards funding its asset management plan.

« the Tiust may open and utilise a deposit account, a cash management platform, or an appropriate call account,
in accordance with its Banking and Investments Policy, to increase the return on its increasing reserve levels
held. The order of priorities with any such investment must be; a) sccurity; b) liquidity, and; ¢) return.

The Trustees acknowledge that the level of reserves for the charitable company may change during the year and
could cither be a good indicator of the underlying financial health of the Trusl, or could be an indicator of
potential problems.

In the longer term, the Trustees have rescrves targets which are a balance between prudence and positivity.
Thesc targets will be reviewed and amended as appropriate over the next two years. The Trustees are pleased
with the turnaround in cash position over the last 18 months, and acknowledge the further improvements needed

in building these rescrves.

The Trustees will also look to extend the reporting of rcserves, particularly cash balances, to consider academy
and institute level reserves.

The mechanics of reporting academy and institute level reserves will be further discussed and worked upon at
Local Governing Body level and escalated to Trustees, as appropriate.
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Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Banlcing aind Investments Policy

The Trust’s bank balances must be: checked at least twice daily: at the start of each working day, and also once
more during the working day. Cash position and cash flow is reported by the Finance Team to the Executive
Principal in writing at least once a week.

The Trust must not use any other financial institute without of the agreement of the Trustees. The Trust must not
arrange an overdraft facility or undertake borrowing without prior written approval from the ESFA.

If the cash reserves levels rise significantly faster than expected during the year, the Trustces may decide to
invest externally. The consideration and potential decision must be added to an agenda item al the next mecting,
of the Board of Trustees.

For the said agenda item, The Tnistées must consider and have minuted:

« the amount to be invested and for how long;

« whether a potential invesiment gives security of investmeiit (includes looking at counterparty credit ratings).
» how quickly the capital invested can be converted to cash at any given péint in time.

« what the rcturn on investment is, '

» whether the performance of a potential ifivestment can be reliably measured,

+ whether a diversification of investment is prefeired.

» whether there is potential to be adversely impacted by currency, intercst rate or other market fluctuations,
» whether there are any matetial brokerage costs.

* whether there are any cthical considerations. ’

» whether there are any reporting or other contractual requiremerits as a result of investment,

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and cnergy use-data for i;lle:pc;'jiod 01 September 2020 to 31 August 2021

- 2021
Energy consumption uscd to calculate emissions '(kWh) 1,780,196
Scope I cimissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Owiied transport - mini-buses 0.54
Gag éansumption 218.86
Total scope | ' 219.40
Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
‘Purchased elecliicity 124.28
Scope 3 emissions Jit metric tonnes CO2e
Business travel in employee owned vehicles 0.02
Total gross emissions i metric tonnes CO2e 343.70
Intensity ratio
Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.22
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Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Quantification and Reporting Methodology:

The Trust has followed the published Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) for academy trusts
guidance, dated 4 August 2021. The Trust has used the GHG Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and has
used the 2021 UK Government Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

Intensity measurcment
The Trust has chosen its intensity ratio to be the total gross emissions in metric lonnes CO2e per student / pupil.
This is the recommended ratio to use for the Education sector.

Mecasures taken to improve energy cfficiency

The Trust has taken the following measures during the year and during previous years to drive improvements in
cnergy efficiency and in elimination of waste:

« installation of an efficicnt boiler system.

« installation of a full suite of LED lighting throughout both academies.

« installation of timers and switches on much of the trusts lighting system.

+ embedding a culture of energy efficiency awareness across the Trust, including how staff and students can
reduce consumption of gas, electricity and other fuel.

+ working with energy brokers to help us execute cultural awareness across the Trust, utilising their best
practices.

* installation of some solat panels at MCA.

+ ambition for further installation of solar pancls across the Trust, as part of a wider decarbonisation strategy.

* introduction of a hybrid of face-to-face and video conferénce meetings, as the Trust emerges from the
coronavirus pandemic.

Fundraising

The academy trust does not use any external fundraisers. All fundraising undertaken during the year was
monitored by the Trustees.

The Trust is gratefu! to the following other funders who have supported us by way of restricted grants during the
academic year:

* Manchester City Council

* Thrive Young Manchéster

* Right To Sucéced

* The Wolfson Foundation

+ The Opening Schools Facilities Fund

* Youth Sports Trust

* The Football Foundation

+ Collyhurst Big Local (articulated in Note 13 of the notes to the accounts)
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Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

Funds held as Custodian Trustcc.on behalf of others
The Trust does not act as a.custodian trustee for.any charities.

Auditor
Insofar as the Trustees aré aware!
* there isno relevant audit infonmation of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and

+ the trustées have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees' Report, incorporating a Strategic Report, was approved by order of the members of the board of
trustees on 29 November 2021 and sighed on its behalf by

8(. oL Xer
Ars S Walker (Chair from 1 September 2021)
Trustee

M J Rowlands

Executive Principal
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Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Greater Manchester Academies
Trust has an effective and appropriate set of financial, operational and other controls. Our system is designed to
mitigate and manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide
anly reasonable and not absolutc assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The board of trustces has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to Mr J Rowlands (Exccutive Principal) , as the
Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both jpropricty and good
financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between Greater Manchester Academies Trust and the Secretary of State for Education.

The Executive Principal, academy local governing bodies, North Manchester Initial Teacher Training Stategic
Committee and Finance and Audit Committee arc responsible for reporting to the board of trustees aity material
weaknesses or breakdowns. in internal control.

In 2021-22, three niew sub-committces, Pay and Personncl Cammittec, Families and Communitics Committee
and Growth and Partnerships Comimittee will also report to the board of trustecs.

Governance

The information on govemnance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of trustecs has formally meét 6 timés during the year. Due to
the coronavirus pandemic, five out of the six meetings were conducted using video conference software, and the
remaining one meeting was a liybrid of attendance via video link. Attendance during the year at meetings of the
board of trustees was as follows:

Meetings Outofa
Trustee attended possible
Ms V Rosin (Chair) (resigned 31 August 2021) 6 6
Mzss D Barrow (Vice Chair from 1 Septeinber 2021) 6 6
Mrs H Slinger (Vice Chair until 31 August 2021) 4 6
Mrs H Vaughan 5 6
Mt J Putt (resigned 31 August 2021) 6 6
Mr R Lawler (resigned 31 August 2021) 5 6
Mr H Ngawoofah 6 6
Mr J Rowlands (Executive Principal and Accounting Officer) 6 6
Mrs § Walker (Chair from 1 September 2021) 6 6

Three long scrving trustees resigned on 31 August 2021. The Trust acknowledges the dedication and service of
V Rosin, R Lawler and J Putt over the years, aiid is gratcful to the contributions they have made to the Trust and
to the young people and community whom we scrve.

Two new trustees, C Brett and T Said were appointed with their trustceships commencing on | September 2021,
S Walker was appointed as the new Chair of Trustees and D Barrow was appointed as the new Vice Chair of
Trustees.

The Trust Board seeks to reccive & review key performance data for each of the key components of the Trust;
to ensure that key deliverables (audited accounts; cash management; budgets; and effective management
reporting) are delivered to schedule; and. secure and safeguard the Trust’s future by reviewing key risks &
actions required to address them. '
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TFinance and Audit Committee

The Finance and Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the main Trust Board. Its purpose is to provide advice
and guidance 1o the main Board on all financial matters, to lead on liaison with Internal and External Audit, to
scrutinise risk management, to cnsure compliance with the Academy Trust Handbook and to scrutinise Value
For Money and propriety in the Trust’s financial processes & procedures.

The Finance and Audit Committee oversees and approves the Trust’s internal audit book of work, ensures that
risks are being addressed appropriately through internal scrutiny and reports to the Trust Board on the adequacy
of the trust’s internal control framework.

The Finance and Audit Committee has formally met seven times during the year, with six routine sessions plus
one extraordinary session to make a key decision as delcgated by the Trust Board. Due to the coronavirus
pandemic, all sessions of Finance and Audit Committee during the year were conducted using video
conferencing software, '

The meeting attendance for the year is as follows:

Finance and Audit Committee Member Meetings Outofa
attended possible

H Vaughan (Chair) 7 7

J Rowlands 6 7

D Barrow 4 7

G Johnson 4 7

A Jubb 6 7

A Lund (appointed 22 September 2020 and resigned 26 May 2021) 5 6

H Ngawoofah (resigned 31 August 2021) 6 7

3 Uttley (resigaed 24 March 2021) 0 4

S Ash 7 7

A Woolley (appointed 22 September 2020) 7 7

Additional Sub-Committees in 2021-22

The Trust Board established additional sub-committees during 2021-22, each having appropriate delegated
powers. The Pay and Personnel Committee, Families and Communities Committee and Growth and Partnerships
Committee commenced from November 2021.

Review of value for money

The Executive Principal, as Accounting Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers as best
value as it can in the use of public resources. The Executive Principal understands that value for money refers to
the educational and wider societal outcomes achicved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

It is further considered how the Trusl’s use of its resources has provided best value for money during each
academic year. The Executive Principal reports to the board of trustees detailing where value for money can be
improved.

During the academic year the Trust demonstrated achieving best value for money by:
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+ taking the decision o bring the provision of catering scrvices and school meals in-housc, thus giving greater
conlrol over procurement and catcring operations, aind contributing to better synergising functions across the
academies.

* promoting the Trust’s lettings portfolio, which comprises of a hybrid of commuiity and commercial bookings
for a wide range of sports, activities, meetings and sessions, as a means of* generating income as well as
cnhancing the opportunities available to our community.

* looking for oppoi'mnitics for capital and revenue grant funding, which supplements the core funding received
from central and local government, and other funding gratefully received into the Trust.

* procuring electric car charging stations, whilst the prices are relatively low, as the first step of a wider,
developing decarbonisation strategy. '

« investing time and some resource into producing an enhanced, comprehensive Trust-wide asset management
plan which has all capital and revenue possessions (not consumables) tagged in a database, which is fully
costed, which is fully funded and which has anticipated replacement dates for all assets contained within the
plan.

+ continuous improvement of financial reporting, an enhancement of information presented to members, trustces
and governors and further embedding a culture of cash awareness and sound financial control throughout the
Trust.

+ refining and improving its financial controls and procurement procedures by introducing a new,
comprehensive Financial Controls Policy.

The Trustees are pleased with the progress made in achieving best value for money, and strive to improve
further in this regard over the next academic year.

The purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims -and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and 1ot absolute assurance of
cffectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise
the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of thosc
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically,

The system of internal control has been in place in Greater Manchester Academies Trust for the year ended 31
August 2021 and up-to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

The Trust refined and improved its financial controls during 2020-21 by replacing its Financial Regulations
Manual with a new, comprehensive Financial Controls Palicy. The intention of the refresh is to improve the
culture of financial awarencss, to assist with the effective management of cash, and to better obtain good value
formoney.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The board of trustecs has veviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of
trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
academy. trust's significant risks that has been in place for the ycar ended 31 August 2021 and up to the datc of
approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly revicwed by the board of
trustees.
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The Risk and Control 'ramework

The Trust has a comprehensive risk management strategy and detailed risk register which has been further
refined and scrutinised during 2020-21. Details of the Trust’s risk management strategy are articulated in the
Trustees’ Report. The risk register is a standing agenda itein at the majority of Finance and Audit Committee
meetings and the risk-management strategy and risk register are approved by the Trust Board when there have
been material changes to the relevant courses of business, but as a minimum, annually.

The Trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedurcs including the scgregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular, it includes:

+ comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which arc reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees.

» comprehensive scrutiny of cash flow management and liquidity.

+ regular reviews by the finance and audit committee of reports which substantiate financial position (in
particular cash); obscrve financial performance against the budgets; and of major purchase plans, capital
works and other programmes of expenditure. '

* sctting targets (o measure financial, operational and other performance.

+ delegation of authority and segregition of duties,

* identification and management of risks.

« clearly defined purchasing, procurement and expenditure guidelincs.

Risk management formed a significant part of the Trust’s internal audit book of work during 2021 which is fully
detailed in the below paragraphs. '

Internal Audit

The board of trustees appointed three internal auditors for thiec sepavate pieces of internal scrutiny and
assurance during the academic ycar, as follows:

* Haines Watts - to provide assurance on the general compliance with the requirements of the Academy Trust
Handbook.

» RSM Risk Assurance Services - to provide a deep dive assurance piece on the Trust's risk management
strategy, risk register and overall risk culture.

+ Willis Towers Watson - to provide a-decp dive assurance piece on the management of health and safely within
MCA.

The role of the internal auditors is to veview the Trust’s systems, processes and procedures; to report on their
schedules of work to the Finance and Audit Commiittee; and to provide details of any material control issues
arising as a result of their worlc and, if relevant, to describe what remedial action is being taken to rectify the
issues. The Trust’s risk register is a key driver of the internal audit book of work.

Recommendations were made by the internal auditors as a result of their assurance work., These
recommendations were added as action points (With action owners and action due dates) t¢ the Trust's
comprehensive master audit action tracker, which is managed by the Finance and Audit Committee.

None of the recommendations made by internal auditors during the year amounted to material control issues.
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Reéview of Effcctiveness ,
The ‘Executive Principal, as Accounting Officer, has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system
of internal control. During the year in question the review lias been informed by:,

» the work of the intémal audit function ;

 the work of the external auditor;

+ the financial management and governance self-assessnient process or tlie school resource management
self-assessment tool;

« the work of the senior and wider leadership teams within the trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Executive Principal has been advised of the impiication_s of the result of their review of the system of
internal control by the Finance and Audit- Commiittee and a plan to address weaknésses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.

A review of progress made on recommendations identified during the previous year was also undertaken and
reported to the Trust Board.

Approved by order of the mémbers of the board of trustees on 29 November 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

.........................................

Mrs S Walker (Chair from 1 September 2021)
Trustee -

......................................

Executive Principal
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As Accounting Officer of Greater Manchester Academies Trust I have considered my responsibility to notify the
academy (rust board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of malerial irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding rcccived by the academy (rust, under
the funding agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secrelary of State for Education. As part of
my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

I confirm that I and the academy trust board of tiustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

I confirm that the following instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance
discovered to date have been notified to the board of trustees and the ESFA. [T any instances are identified afler
the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of (rustecs and ESFA:

Financial Issues

During the ycar of account, the Trust had the following transactions with British Telecom:

» Internet access and telephony services to the value of £3,438 (excl VAT) for both schools;

The above (ransactions do not meet the "At Cost" requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2020. As we
have previously noted, transactions with BT have been entered into after open & fair competition, and there has
been no personal benefit to BT Trustees from these transactions. Nonetheless, we have ended this contract early,

to ensure we comply with DfE requirements regarding related party transactions.

The contract termination took effect from November 2020.

Mr J Rowlands, (Exccutive Principal)
Accounting Officer

24 Noverker 202

Date: .o
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

The Trustees (who are also the directors of Greater Manchcester Academies Trust for the purposes of company
law) arc responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the
Academics Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and
regulations.

Company law réquires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year, Under company law
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,

including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing thése financial statements, the Trustees are

required to:
* select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

+ observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2020
ta.2021;

¢ make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
*  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards, including FRS 102, have been followed; and

+ ‘prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and cnable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Conipanies- Act
2006. They -are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applicd for
the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the meémbers of the Board on 29 November 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Mrs § Walker (Chair from 1 September 2021)
Trustee
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Greater
Manchester Academies Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Greater Manchester Academies Trust "the acadeimy trust” for the
year cnded 31 August 2021, which comprise the Slatement of Financial Aclivities (including the Summary
Income and Expenditure Account), the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows, and the rclated notes
including significant accounting policies in Note 1. The financial reporling framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (Unitcd Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2021 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, incliding its income and expenditure, for the year then ended,;

» have becn propetly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

» have been prepared in accordance with the,‘r.equ__iremcnts of the Companies Act 2006 and the Acadeémies
Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Bducation and Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion _
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We arc independent of the academy trust in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financ¢ial statcments in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit cvidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Greater
Manchester Academies Trust (continued)

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustecs' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertaintics relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectivcly, indy cast significant doubt on the academy’s ability to continue as a

foing concern for a period of at least twelve months from wheén the financial statements are authorised for issue. -

Our responsibilities and the responsibilitics of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The trustees (who are also the directors of the academy for the
purposes of company law) are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise cxplicitly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Tn connection with our audit of the financial statements our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or othcrwisé appcars to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are requived to determine whether therc is a material
misstatement in (he financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we arc
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to rcport in this regard.
_Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken ‘in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the trustees’ report, which includes the Strategic Report prepaied for the purposes
of company law, for the financial year for which the financial statements arc prepared is consistent with the
financial statements; and

+ the Strategic Report included within the trustees’ report has been prepared in accoidaricé with applicable
legal requirements.

Matters ori which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstaterments in the trustees' report; or

‘We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

¢ In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the trustees’ report; or

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branchés not visited by us; or

+ the financial statements are not i agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

+ certain disclosures of trustees’ remuncration spccified by law are not made; ot
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Greater
Manchester Academies Trust (continued)

+ we have not received all the information and cxplanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Trustees

As cxplained more fully in the Statement of Trustces’ Responsibilitics set-out on page 30, the Trustees (who arc
also the directors of the academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the (rustecs determine is necessary to cnable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror.,

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the academy’s ability to continue
as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the trustces either intend to liquidate the academy or to ceasc operations, or have no
rcalistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are frce
froin material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issuc an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a inaterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered malerial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could rcasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of uscrs taken on the basis of these financial statements.
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including frand. The specific procedures for this engagement and the extent to which thesc are capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularitics including fraud

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatcment in respect of irregularities,
including fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

» the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate competence,
capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

+ we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the academy (hrough discussions with trustees and other
management, and from our knowledge and expericnce of the academy sector.

« we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the
financial statcments or the operations of the academy, including the Companies Act 2006, the Charities Act
2011, and the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 and Academies Financial Handbook 2020, both
issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

+ we assessed the cxtent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making
enquirics of management and inspecting legal correspondence.

* identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained
alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the academy’s financial statements to material misstatement, including
obtaining an understanding of how fraud might accur, by:

» making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceplibility to fraud, their
knowledge of aclual, suspceted and alleged fraud.

+ considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations.
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Stateinents to the Members of Greater
Manchester Academies Trust (continued)

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

» performed analytical procedures on material balances for which robust, substantive analytical procedures
have been undertaken to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships.

* tested journal entries to identify unusual lransactions.

+ investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

There arc irherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed that laws and
regulations are from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance.
Auditing standards also limit the audit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if
any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from ervor as they
may involve deliberate concealment or collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might statc to thé academy's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purposc. To the fullest
extcnt permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy’s. members
as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Beorer esd &wm

Sue Hutchinson FCCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of
Beever and Struthers,

St George's House
215-219 Chester Road
Manchester

MIS4JE
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to Greater Manchester
Academies Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 1 Junc 2017 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021,
we have carried oul an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whetheér the cxpenditure disbursed and
income received by Greater Manchester Academics Trust during the period 1 Septeniber 2020 to 31 August
2021 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.

This report is made solcly to Greater Manchester Academies Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terins
of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertakén so that we may state to Greater Manchester Academies
Trust and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a icport and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitled by law, we do not accept or assumc responsibility to anyone other than Greater Manchester
Academies Trust and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Governing Body's accounting officer and the rcpbrting accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of the board of trustees's funding agreement with
the Secretary of State for Education dated 13 March 2009 and the Academies Financial Handboolk extant from |
September 2020, for ensuring that cxpenditure disbursed and income reccived is applied for the purposcs
intended Ly Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authoritics which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our cngagement letter and the
requirements of thc Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021, We report to you whether anything has come
to our atténtion in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year from | September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with thc Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issucd by
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in.our engagement letter,

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
cxplanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a ncgative conclusion on

" regularity.
A limited assurance engagement is morc limited in scope than a reasonablé assurance engagement and
consequently does not cnablc us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance cngagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Owr engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence rclevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:
* Review and testing of financial systems of internal control
+ Sample testing of transactions

« Discussions with management
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to Greater Manchester
Academies Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Conclusion

In the course of our work cxcept for the matters listed below, nothing has conie to our attention which suggests
that in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year | September 2020 to
31 August 2021 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not
conform to the authorities which govern them:

The Trust entered into related party transactions with a connected party, Details are as follows:

1. British Telecommunications Plc (BT) - BT is a member of the Academy Trust. The Academy Trust procured
goods and services from BT. The transactions are at noimal market rates and therefore include an element of
profit. The transactions thereforc do not meet the “at cost™ requiremeits of the Academies Financial Handbook

(reference 5.48).

Full details of the related party transactions noted above are included in Note 23 of the Financial Statements,
and details are also provided in the Accounting Officer’s Statement 6n Regularily, Propriety -and Internal
Control on page 30.

Sue Hutchinson FCCA _
For and on behalf of Beever aiid Struthers, Chartered Accountants

St George's Housc
215-219 Chester Road
Manchester

MI5 4JE

13 December 2021
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Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2021
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Greater Manchester Acadenties Trust

Note

Income and endowments fi-om:

Donations and capital
grants

Charitable activities:
Funding for the Academy:
trust's cducational
operations

Teaching schools

Other trading activities
Apprenticeship levy
funded training

Total

Expenditure on:
Raising funds

Charitable activities:
Academy (rust educational
operations

Teaching schools
Apprenticeship lcvy
funded training

Total

Net income/(expenditure)
Transfers between funds

Other recogunised gains
and Josses

Actuarial gains on.defined
bencfit pension schemes

Net movement in
funds/(deficit)

Recoiciliation of funds

Total funds/(deficit)
brought forward at 1
September 2020

Total funds/(deficit)
carried forward at 31
August 2021

22

24

Réstricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset 2020/21 2019/20
Funds Funds Funds Total Total
£000 £ 000 £000 £000 £000
8 - 94 102 135
- 12,331 - 12,331 11,147
- 327 - 327 282
134 - - 134 330
- 38 - 38 17
142 12,696 94 12,932 11,911
- 36 - 36 84
- 11,695 862 12,557 12,193
- 321 - 321 259
- 38 - 38 _ 17
- 12,090 862 12,952 12,553
142 606 (768) (20) (642)
- 119) 119 - -
- (1,467) - (1,467) (422)
142 (980) (649) (1,487) (1,064)
210 (3,147 30,019 27,082 28,145
352 (4,127) 29,370 25,595 27,081
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

(Registration number: 06754335)
Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2021

: 2021 2020
Note £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible asséts. 11 29,370 29,989
Current asscts
Debtors 12 571 - 500
Cash at bank and in hand 1,978 773
2,549 1,273

Liabilities ‘
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 13 (790) (637)
Net current assets 1,759 636
Total assets less current liabilities ' 31,129 30,625
Net assets excluding pension liability 31,129 30,625
Defiried benefit pension scheme liability 24 (5,534) (3,543)
Total net assets including pension liability 25,595 27,082
Funds of the Academy:
Restricted funds
Restricted general fund 1,407 396
Restricted fixed asset fund 29,370 30,019
Restricted pension fund (5,534) (3,543)

25,243 26,872
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general fund 352 210
Total funds 25,595 27,082

The financial statements on pages 37 to 67 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on 29
November 2021 and signed on their behalf by:

.........................................

Mrs-S Walker
Trustce

Mr J Rowlands
Executive. Principal
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Greéater Manchester Academies Trust

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 August 2021

2021 2020
Note £000 £ 000
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by opérating activities 17 1,350 575
Cash flows from investing activities 18 ‘ (145) L 39}
Change in cash and cash equivaleits i the year I,205 614
Cash and cash cquivalents at 1 September 773 159
Ciish and cash equivalents at 31 August 19 1,978. B 773

Page 39




Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021

1 Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charitics: Statement of
Recommeénded Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Treland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA, the Charitics Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2006.

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the usc of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there arc any material
uncertainties related lo cvents or conditions thal may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company (6
continue as a going concern. The trustees make this asscssment in respect of a period of at least one year from
the datc of authorisation for issue of the financial statéments and have concluded that the academy trust has
adequate resources to continuc in operational existence for the foréseeable future. The financial performance
reviewed in these statemernits do not give iise to concern about the continuing operation of the Trust.

The thrce-year budget projection for the Trust, bascd on the actions agreed at the Trust Board, demonstrates that
the Trust is a going concern. In summary, after making appropriate enquiries, the Trust Board has a rcasonable
expectation that the academy trust has adequate resources to cosntinue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, it continués to adopt the going concein. basis in preparing the financial
statements. Further details regarding thc adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Trustees’
Annual Report on Pages 4-15,

Income
All incoming resources arc recognised when the academy trust has entitlenient to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance
sheet. Where income is received in advance of mecting any performance-related conditions there is not
unconditional entitlement to the income and ‘its recognition is deferred -and included in creditors as deferred
income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement accur$ before income is reccived,
the income is accrued. ’

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receivable and any abalement iri respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants arc rccognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of
capital grants are reflected in the balancc sheet in the restricted, fixed asset fund. Capital grants are spent on
capital projects in line with the terms and conditions of the grant. Capital grants arc recogniscd when there is
entitlemicnt and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there aie no performance-related conditions) where the
receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal ar constructive obligation Lo transfer:cconomic benefit to a third
party, it is probable that a transfer of cconomic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity, The costs of each activity arec made up
of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct
costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared casts which contributc to more
than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those
aclivities on a basis consistent with the use of resources, Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time
spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposcs and
includes costs of all fundraising aclivities events and nou-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the academy trusl's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £2,000 or more arc capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are cairied at cost, net of depreciation
and any provision for impairment. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific
grants, cither from the government or from the private sector, they arc included in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over their cxpected uscful cconomic life. The related grants arc credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carricd forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on such
assets is charged to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities so as to reducc the
fund over the useful economic life of the related asset on a basis consistent with the Academy Trust’s

depreciation policy.

Depreciation is provided on all tangibl¢ fixed assets other than frechold land, at rates calculated to write off the
cost 6f each asset over its expected useful lives, per the table below.

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they
are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is casried out if evenis or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying valuc of any fixed assct may not be recovcrable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assels
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement
of Financial Activities.
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continucd)

Assct class Depreciation method and rate
L/Term Leasehold Propeity 50 Years

S/Term additions to Icaschold buildings 8 Years

Motor Vehicles 4 Years

Fixtures & Fittings 4 Years

Computer cquipment 3 Years

Linbilities

Liabilities are tecognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of econoinic benefit will be required in seltleient; and the amount of the séltlement can
‘be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at thc amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay to
settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a reésult of a past
event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated
reliably:

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settié the obligation. Where the effect of
the time valuc of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at
the pre-tax discount ratc that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged to the statement of financial activities incorporating .income and
expenditure account on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Financial Instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors arc basic financial insttuments and aie debt insttuments measured at
amortised cost as dctailed in note 12. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instruiment and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and otheir creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at
amortised cost as detailed in notes 13. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments
disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, -as the cash settlement has
already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or-another financial instrument,
Amounts due to charity’s wholly ownéd subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Taxation
The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and
thercfore it meeéts the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Scction 256 of the
Taxation of Chargeable Gaing Act 1992, to the cxtent that sich income of gains are applied exclusively to
charitable purposes.
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Pension benefits

Retirément benefits to employees of the Academy Trust ate provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (‘TPS’)
and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes, The TPS is an
unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employces’ working
lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cosl is a substantially lcvel percentage of current
and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Governmenl Actuary on the basis of
quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. As stated in the notes to the financial statements,
the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to usc defined benefit
accounting. The TPS is therefore lreated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the
contributions recognised in the period to which they relate,

The LGPS is a funded schemc and the assets aic held separately from thosc of the Academy. Trust in separate
trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are meastired at fair value arid liabilitics are measured on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate cquivalent to the current rate of
return on a high quality .corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilitics. The actuarial
valuations arc obtained at least triennially and arc updated at each balance sheet date, The amounts charged to
operating surplus arc the current service costs aid the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes,
settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/assét is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost
on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair
value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The
difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return -on the scheme assets is
recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immedialtely in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards mecting any of thie ¢haritable
objccts of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees,

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for Education/sponsor/other funders where the asset acquired
or created is held for a specific purposc.

Restricted general funds comprisc all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for Education

Group.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Estiinates and judgements ate continually cvaluated and ave based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting cstimates
and assumptions will, by dcfinition, seldom equal the related actual results. The cstimates and assumptions that
have 4 significant risk of causing a imaterial adjustment to the carrying amounts 6f assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below. ‘

The present value of the Local Governiiient Pension Scheme defined bénefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a varicty of assumptions. The assumptions vsed in
determining the net cost (income). for pensions include ih¢ discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in fiote 24, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has
been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31/08/21. Any differences between the figures
derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amouit -of
the pension liability.

2 Donations and capital grants

’ Restricted _
Unrestricted fixed asset 2020/21 2019/20
funds funds Total Total
£ 000 £000 £000 £000
Governmeiit grants - 94 94 122
Other donations L 8 - .. 8 13
8 94 102 135
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

3 TFunding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

DSE/ESTA revenue grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Pupil Premium

Other DfE/ESFA grants

PE & Sports Grant

Insurance

Teachers' Pay Grant
Teachers' Pension Grant

Other government
grants

SEN from Local Authority
Other government grants
Music Tuition grant

Non-government
grants and other income

Holiday Programme

Once Upon A Time

Thrive - Young Manchester
Education Endowment Foundation
Garfield Weston Foundation
Other

Teach First

STEM

Tlie Wolfson Foundation
YMCA

UKIE

‘Opening Schools Facilitics Fund

Exceptional government funding
Exceptional Coronavirus Funding

Total grants

Restricted 202021 2019/20
funds Tatal Total
£000 £000 £ 000

9,642 9,642 9,173
939 939 897
236 236 188

19 19 19
4 4 28
102 102 65

319 319 251

11,261 11,261 10,621
299 299 207
219 219 135
Il 11 8
529 529 350
i - 1

3 3 2
13 13 13
74 74 65
- - 40
26 26 -
5 5 -

2 2 .

Il Il -

[ ! -

3 3 -
3 3 -
141 141 121
400 400 55
12,331 12,331 11,147
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

4 Other trading activities

Unrestricted 2020/21 '2019/20
funds “Total Total
£000 £000 £000

Hire of facilities 86 86 113
Catering income © 42 42 43
Other income 6 6 , 174

134 134 330
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

5 Expenditure

Expenditure on
raising funds
Allocated support
costs

Academy's
educational
opeiations
Direct costs
Allocated support
costs

Teaching School

Apprenticeship
levy funded
training
Allocated support
costs

Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals

Depreciation

Non Pay Expenditure
2020721 2019/20
Staff costs Premises Other costs Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £:000
29 6 1 36 84
6,463 781 839 8,083 7,845
2,724 509 1,241 4,474 4,348
- - 321 - 321 259
- - 38 38 17
9,216 1,296 2,440 12,952 12,553
2020/21 2019720
£000 £ 000
214 223
857 913
13 12

Fees payable to auditor - audit

-other audit services
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

6 Charitable activities

Diiect costs - educational operations
Support cosls - educational operations

Analysis of support costs
Support staff.costs
'DepreCiatiOn

Technology costs
Prcmiscs costs

Other support costs
Gavernanceé costs

Total suppoit costs

Total Total
2021 2020
£ 000 £000
8,083 7,845
4,474 4,348
12,557 12,193
Educational Total Total
operations 2021 2020
£000 £ 000 £ 000
2,724 2,724 2,887
77 77 82
124 124 53
432 432 487
1,090 1,000 808
27 27 30
4474 4414 4,347
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

7 Staff
Staff costs
2021 2020
£000 £000
Staff costs during the year were:
Wages and salaries 6,745 6,669
Soacial security costs 666 635
Opcrating costs of defined benefit pénsion schewes 1,784 1,755
9,195 9,059
Supply staff costs 9 31
Staff restructuring costs 12 87
9,216 9,177

Included within the Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes is the service cost of £459k (2020:

£463k) for the LGPS.

2021 2020
£000 £000
Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Redundancy payments 3 52
Severance payments 9 35
12 87

Non statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments

Included in staff restructuring costs arc non-statutory/non-contractual severance paymcits totalling £11,593

(2020: £87,000). Individually, the payments, which include any nominal associated legal costs were:

Non-statutory payments £2,426
Non-statutory payments £4,300
Non-statutory payments £4,867
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Yeat Ended 31 August 2021 (continied)

7 Staff (continued)
Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the ycar was as follows:

2020/21 2019720
No No
‘Charitable Activities
Tcachers 128 133
Non-teaching staff 124 129
252 262
Higher paid staff
The nimber of employees whose eméluments exceeded £60,000 was:
2021 2020
No No
£60,001 - £70,000 5 7
£70,001 - £80,000 4 2
£80,001 - £90,000 1 2
1 1

£100,001 - £110,000

IKey management personnel

The key maiiagement pcrspnnd of the Academy Trust comprise the trustées and the scnior management team as
listed on page I. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contribulions) received by
key management personnel for their services to.the Academy Trust was £579,150 (2020: £571,042).
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

8 Shared seivices

The Trust provides a number of centralised functions and delivers a number of centralised services, known
collectively to MCA, MCPA and NMITTP as the Shared Services. During the academic yéar thesc provisions
and deliverables covered:

- Leadership

- Finance

- Governance

- Payroll

- Human Resources

- Site Management

- Web and Mcdia Support

- ICT Systems, Software and Support

- Safeguarding

- Community & Mission

- Other Costs

During the year the trust charged MCA, MCPA and NMITTP for shared services on the basis of an assented
Service Level Agreement (SLA). Costs of the Shared Scrvices are reported to Academy Local Governing
Bodies and to the NMITTP Strategic Management Cominittee.

The actual annual amounts charged were as follows:

2021

£000
Manchester Communication Academy 1,180
Manchester Communication Primary Academy ' 233
Teach North Manchester 18
1,431

9 Related party transactions - trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from employment with the
academy trust. The Exccutive Principal only receives remuneralion in respect of services they provide
undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment, and not in respect of
their role as trustecs.

Other related party transactions involving the trustees are sel out in note 23.

10 Trustees' and officers' insurance

The Academy Trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise, This scheme protects trustecs and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occwiting whilst on Academy business, and
provides cover up to £10,000,000. The cost for the period ended 31 August 2021 was £28,818 (2020: £27,882).
The cost of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost.
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

11 Tangible fixed assets

Cost
At 1 Scptember 2020
Additions

At 31 August 2021

Depreciation
At | Scptember 2020
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2021
Net book value

At 31 August 2021
At 31 August 2020

12 Debtors

‘Frade debtors
VAT recoverable
Prepayments

Accrued grant and othef income

Leaschold
land and Furniture and Computer Motor ,
buildings cquipment equipment vehicles Total
£000. £000 £000 £000 £000
35,851 2,106 2,561 32 40,550
24 L08 107 - 239
35,875 2,214 2,668 32 40,789
6,070 1,954 2,506 32 10,562
719 R 61 - 857
6,789 2,031 2,567 32 11,419
29,086 183 104 - 29,370
29,781 152 55 - 29,988
2021 2020
£000 £000
15 84
44 70
314 274
198 72
500
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Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

13 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2021 2020
£000 £ 000
Trade creditors 291 171
Other taxation and social security : 185 147
Other creditors 47 28
Accruals 67 101
Deferred income . 34 44
Pension scheme creditor 166 146
790 637
2021 2020
£000 £000
Deferred income
Deferred income at 1 September 2020 44 75
Resources deferred in the period 34 44
Amounts released from previous periods (44) (75)
Deferred income at 31 August 2021 34 44

Income of £33,653 has been dceferred for advanced payment of Universal Free School Meals, Urban Crew
community project income and coronavirus testing payment income, all of which relate to the 2021-22 academic

year.

Collyhurst Big Local

The Trust collaborates with the Collyhurst Big Local - a partnership of local stakeholders in the M40 postcode
arca of Manchester. Collyhurst Big Local aims to make lasting and positive differences to this area by way of
bringing together local talent, ambitions, skills and energy from individuals, groups and organisations. The
Collyhurst Big Local Partnership receives grant funding from the National Lottery Community Fund.

The Trust has been a guardian of the Fund since 2014. It receives the funding from Big Local Trust (part of the
National Lottery Community Fund), and facilitates local organisations drawing down this funding as and when
-approved by the Collyhurst Big Local Partnership.

The Trust’s other creditors balance as at the year end date, represents the funds held by the Trust on behalf of
Collyhurst Big Local. The Trust’s reporting period is different to the Collyhurst Big local’s reporting period.
The income and expenditure in relation to Collyhurst Big Local have is hot shown in the Statement of Financial
Activities, Instcad, the Collyhurst Big Local net income for the year is shown as a movement in the funds held
by the Trust on behalf of Callyhurst Big Local.

The Trust is not; however, a custodian Trustee of the Collyhurst Big Local.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

14 Funds

Restricted general funds
GAG

Pupil Premium

Other DfE/ESFA grants
Teachers' Pay Grant
Teachers Pension Grant
Other income
Teaching.School
Apprenticeship Levy funded
training

Restricted pension funds
Pension reserve

Total restricted general funds

Restricted fixed asset fuhds
Restricted fixed assct funds

‘Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general funds

Total funds

Balance at 1 Gains, Balance at
September Incoming Resources losses and 31 August
2020 resources expended transfers 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

- 9,642 (8,550) (119) 973

- 939 (939) - -

223 237 (237) - 223

- 101 (o) - -

- 319 (319) - s

30 1,093 (1,061) - 62

143 327 (321) - 149

- 38 (38) - -

396 12,696 (11,566) (119) 1,407
(3,543) - (524) _(1,467) (5,534)
3,147 (12,696) 12,090 1,586 4,127
30,019 94 (862) 119 29,370
26,872 12,790 (12,952) (1,467) 25,243
210 142 - - 352
27,082 12,932 (12,952) (1,467) 25,595
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14 Funds (continued)

Comparative informalion in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Restricted general funds
GAG

Pupil Premium

Othier DfE/ESFA grants
Teaching School
Apprenticeship Levy funded
training

Restiicted fixed asset funds
Restricted fixed asset funds

Restricted pénsion funds
Pension rescrve

Tatal restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general funds

Total funds

Balance at 1 . Gains, Balance at
September Incoming Resources losses and 31 Aupust
2019 resources expended transfers 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

(320) 9,173 (8,814) (39) -

- 897 (897) - -

130 1,126 (1,003). - 253
120 282 (259) - 143

- 17 (17) - -

(70) 11,495 €10,990) (39) 396
30,819 122 961) 39 30,019
(2,604) - _(517) (422) (3,543)
28,145 11,617 (12,468) (422) 26,872
- 294 (84 - 210
28,145 11,911 (12,552) (422) 27,082

The specific purposes for which the funds arc to be applied arc as follows:

Restricted General Funds are used specifically to provide educational resoutces for the pupils of the Academy.

Restricted Fixed Asset funds provide for the installations, maintenance and repair of the fixed :assets of the

Academy.

Unrestricted Funds are those other resources which may be used to further the objeétives of the Academy.

The transfers from GAG restricted funds to restricted fixed asset funds represents capital expenditure funded

from GAG.
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14 Tunds (continued)

Analysis of aéademies by fund balance

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 were allocated as follows:

2021, 2020

£000 £000
Manchester Communication Academy 1,061 51
Manchester Communication Primary. Academy 550 412
Teach North Manchester 148 143
Total before fixed assets and pénsion reserve 1,759 606
Restricted fixed assct funds 29,370 30,019
Pension reserve (5,534) . (3,543)
Total 25,595 27,082
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14 Funds (continued)
Analysis of academies by cost

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
" Teaching and

Educational Other Other Costs
Support Staff’  Support Staff Educational (excluding Total Total
Costs Costs Supplies Depreciation) 2021 2020
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Manchester Communication Academy 5,013 1,777 163 2,277 9,230 ' 9,230
Manchester Communication Primary Academy 898 553 42 287 1,780 1,780
Ceritral services. 102 922 - - 1,024 1,024
Academy Trust 6,013 3252 205 2,564 12,034 12,034
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15 Analysis of nct assets between funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are represented by:

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed assef
fu‘n(_is general funds finds Total funds
£ 000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixcd assets - - 29,370 29,370
Current asscts 316 2,233 - 2,549
Current liabilities - (790) - (790)
Pension scheme liability - (5,534) - (5,534)
Total nel asscts 316 4,091) 29,370 25,595
Comparative information in respect of the precediiig period is as follows:
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset
funds general funds funds. Total funds
£ 000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets - - 29,988 29,088
Current assets 210 1,063 - 1,273
Current fiabilitics - (637) - (637)
Pension scheme liability - (3,543) - (3,543)
Total net assets 210 _ (3,117) 29,988 27,081
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16 Cominitments indei-operatig leases

Operating leases

At 31 August 2021 the total of the acac_lemy trust's fuiture minimum lcase payments under non-canccllable
operating lcascs was:
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16 Commitments under operating leases (continued)

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due between one and five years

17 Reconciliation of net expenditure to'net cash inflow/(outflow) fromi operating activities

Net-expenditure
Depreciation
Capital grants from DfE and othcr capital income

Defined beriefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
Increase in debtois
Increase/(decrease) in creditors

Net cash provided by Operating Activities

18 Cash flows from investing activitics

Purchase of tangible fixed asscts
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets
Capital funding reccived from sponsors and others

- Net cash (uscd in)/provided by investing activities
19 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand

Total cash and cash equivalents

20 Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash
Total

2021 2020
£ 000 £000
162 210
- 165
162 375
2021 2020
£000 £000
(20) (642)
857 914
94) (122)
459 463
65 54
) (40)
153 (51)
1,349 576
2021 2020
£000 £000
(239) (132)
. 49
94 122
(145) 39
2021 2020
£000 £ 000
1,978 773
1,978 773

Atl
September At 31 August
2020 Cash flows 2021
£000 £000 £000
773 1,205 1,978
773 1,205 1,978
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21 Meinbers' liability

Each member of the charitable compariy undcitakes 16 contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while they are a miember, or williifi one yearafter thcy' ceases to be a.miember, such amount as
may be iequired, not cxceeding £10 for the debts and liabilitiés contracted before tiey ccase to be a nicmber.
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22 Teaching school trading account

Income

Direct Income
Other income

Total Income
Lxpenditure

Direct costs
Direct staff:costs
Staff development
Other dircct costs

Total direct-cosls

Other costs

Support staff costs
Recruitment and support
‘Share of govérnarice costs

‘Total othei costs

Total Expenditure

Surplis from all sources

Teaching school balances at 1 September 2020

Teaching school balances at 31 August 2021
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2020/21 2019/20
£ 000 £ 000,

327 282

327 282

105 81

29 23

2 1

136 105

2 3

165 139

18 12

185 154
(321) (259)

6 23

143 . 120
149 143




Greater Manchester Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

23 Reclated party transactions

Owing to the nature to the Academies Trust and to the composition of the board of trustees - historically being
drawn from local public and private sector organisalions - {ransactions have previously taken -place with
organisations in which the Trust has an interest. All {ransactions involving such organisalions, have been
conducted at arm’s length and in accordance with the Trust’s Financial Control Policy.

British Telecom

The Trust works closely with its sponsor - British Telecom (BT). BT supports the Trust by sharing expertise,
skills and good practices by way of providing some members, trustces, governors and committee t6 support the
gavernarice of the ofganisation.

During the year, thc Trust ceased the remaining procurement of telephony and intcrnet services to satisfy the ‘at
cost’ requirements of the Acadeniy Financial Handbook 2020. The teimination took effect in November 2020.
Expenditure with BT was £3,438.23 during 2020-21 and thi§ represents the final transactions with the Trust’s

sponsor.

Manchester City Council
The Trust’s transactions with Manchester City Council, meet the ‘al cost’ requirements of the Academy

Financial Handbook 2020.

Onc of the trustecs, Mrs D Barrow, is an employce of Manchester City Council. Mrs D Barrow holds the post of
HR Business Partner and is not directly involved in the management or decision making of any of the divisions
of the local authority with whom the Trust transacted.

Mancheéster Fayre

Manchester Fayre is part-of Manchester City Council. The Trust brought the provisian of catering in-house
during 2020-21 from Manchester Fayre. Manchcster Fayre stated its intentions to cease the catering function in
Manchester schools in October 2020. There was a one-off liability of £122,655 payable in 2020-21 resulting
from the vastly reduced income received due to school closedowns during the coronavirus national lockdown.
The arrangcment was based on the trading account (1 April to 31 March) positioi, which any surplus returned to
the Trust each year, but with any deficit payable by the Trust. For the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021,
there weré two national coronavirus national lockdowns during which the academies were closed.

Right To Succeed _
The Executive Principal, Mr.J Rowlands was appointed a Trustee of Right To Succeed in July 2020, The Trust

received grants from Riglit To Succeed of £28,147.50 during the year. The Right To Succeed Project is a
‘¢ollaboration between Right to Succeed, Manchester City Council and nine Manchester secondary ‘schools
which explores ways of reducing pupil exclusions across the city through developing opportunities. for young
people and delivering positive educational changes. ' '
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23 Related party transactions (continucd)
HMG Paints Limited

‘One of the Trust’s Members, Mr J Falder, is the managing director of HMG Paints Limited from whom the
Trust procured some cleaning consumables during the coronavirus pandemic. The expenditure in this regard was
£2,152.50.

Thrive - Young Manchester

Finally, another of the Trustees, Mr H Ngawoofah is an employee of Young Manchester. The Trust recéived a
grant from Young Manchester during the year of £12,500. The grant from Young Manchester helped our
Families and Communities tcam facilitate some of their family partnerships and support work throughout our
community.

24 Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme.
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Greater Manchester Pension Fund . Both arc multi-employer
dcfined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March
2019.

Contributions amounting to £ 166k (2020 - £146k) were payable to the schemes at 31 August and are included
within creditors. .

Teachers' Pension Scheme .

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership. is automatic for teachers in academics. All Teachers
have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage
of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retiremeit and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Parliament.
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24 Pension aud similar obligations (continued)

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensians (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury every 4 yecars. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of futurc costs, design of benefits and many
other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report
was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and
subsequent consultation are:

* employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)

« total scheme liabilities (pensions currcntly in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to
the effective datc of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated futurc contributions together with the
notional nvestments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of
£22,000 million

« the SCAPE rate, sct by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is
2.4% above the rate of CPIL assuined real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings.
The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings
growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023,

The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £1,070,232 (2020: £992,039).

A copy of the valuation report and supporling documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The academy
trust has accountcd for its contributions to the schieme as if it were a defined ontribution scheme. The academy
trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in scparate trustee-administered funds. The
total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2021 was £424,000 (2020 - £421,000), of which
employer's contributions totalled £318,000 (2020 - £319,000) and employees' contributions totalled £106,000
(2020 - £102,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 18.5 per cent for employers and between
5.5 - 12.5 per cent for employees.

Parliament has agrced, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the cvent of
an academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2021 2020
% %
Rate of increase in salaries 3,70 3.00
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.90 2.20
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.70 1.70
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24 Pension and similar obligations (continucd)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in the mortality rates.

The asswined life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2021 2020
Retiring today
Males retiring today 20.50 20.50
Females retiring today 23.30 23.10
Retiring in 20 years
Males retiring in 20 years 21.90 22.00
Females retiring in 20 years 2530 25.00
Sensitivity analysis

MCAP MCAP

2021 2020

£000 £000
Discount rate -0.1% 354 1,153.00
Moitality assumption — | ycar increase 428 -
CPl rate +0.1% 329 1,048.00
Salary increasc ratc +0.1% 21 86.00
Salary increase rate <0,1% - 10.00
The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme were:

2021 2020

£000 ‘ £000
Equities 3,679 2,684
Other bonds 7 632
Property 363 276
‘Cash. and other liquid assets 363 355
Total market value of asséts 5,182 3,947
The actual return 6n scheme assets was £822,000 (2020 - (£164,000)).
Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities

2021 2020

£000 £000
Current s€rvice cost (net of employee contributions) (459) (463)
Interest income 70 74
Interest cost (135) (128)
Total amount recognised in the SOFA (529 (517)

Included within the Statement of Financial Activities expenditure is the Actuarial Gain/(Loss) amounting to

£1,467k (2020: £422k)
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24 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Changes in the present value of defined-benefit-obligations were as follows:

2020/21 2019720
£000 £000
At start of period 7,490 6,302
Cuireit service cost 777 782
Ititerest cost 135 128
Employee contributions 106 102
Actuarial (gain)/loss 2,219 184
Benefits paid (11) (8)
At 31 August _ 10,716 7,490
Changes in the fair value of academy's share of scheme assets:
2020/21 2019720
£ 000 £000
At start of period 3,947 3,698
Interest income 90 74
Actuarial gain/(loss) 752 (238)
Eniployer contributions 318 319
Einployee contributions 106 102
Benefits paid _an ®
At 31 August 5182 3,947
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